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Securities and Exchange Commission ,
450 Fifth Street, N.-W. L
Washington, DC 20549

Re: AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a class action complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York on November 12, 2003 by
Lori Weinrib against the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in Appendix A (the
“Funds”) and the Funds’ affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The Funds make this
filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
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CC: Keith A. O’Connell
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AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

APPENDIX A

Name Registration CIK No.
No.

AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc. 811-00126 0000029292
AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc. 811-09329 | 0001085421
AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc. 811-09687 0001090504
AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc. 811-00204 | 0000019614
AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc. 811-07707 0001018368
The AllianceBernstein Portfolios 811-05088 0000812015
- AllianceBemnstein Growth Fund
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series, Inc. 811-09176 0001062417
- Biotechnology Portfolio '
- Technology Portfolio
- Premier Portfolio
AllianceBernsteinTrust 811-10221 0001129870
- AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein International Value Fund
AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-06730 0000889508
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc. 811-01716 | 0000081443
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 | 0000350181
AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, Inc. 811-07916 0000910036
AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, Inc. 811-00134 | 0000069752
AllianceBermnstein Blended Style Series, Inc. 811-21081 0001172221
- U.S. Large Cap Portfolio
AllianceBermnstein All Asia Investment Fund, Inc. 811-08776 0000930438
AllianceBernstein Greater China *97 Fund, Inc. 811-08201 0001038457
AllianceBemstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-08527 0001050658
AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc. 811-01415 | 0000095669
AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc. 811-06028 0000859605
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc. 811-08426 0000920701
AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, Inc. 811-06554 0000883676
AllianceBernstein Bond Fund, Inc. 811-02383 0000003794
- Corporate Bond Portfolio
- Quality Bond Portfolio
- U.S. Government Portfolio )
AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc. 811-08188 | 0000915845
AllianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc. 811-07391 0001002718
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc. 811-09160 | 0001029843
AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strategy Fund, Inc. 811-06251 0000873067




Sanford C. Bernstein Fund, Inc.

- Short Duration Portfolio

- Intermediate California Municipal Portfolio

- Intermediate Diversified Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate New York Municipal Portfolio

811-05555

0000832808

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund, Inc.
- National Porfolio

California Portfolio

- Insured California Portfolio

- Insured National Portfolio

- New York Portfolio

811-04791

0000798737

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund II
- Arizona Portfolio

- Florida Portfolio

- Massachusetts Portfolio

- Michigan Portfolio

- Minnesota Portfolio

- New Jersey Portfolio

- Ohio Portfolio

- Pennsylvania Portfolio

- Virginia Portfolio

811-07618

0000899774




APPENDIX B

Affiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

Name CIK No. Registration | IARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. 0000825313 | 001-09818 | 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management Corporation N/A 801-39910 107445
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 | 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 | N/A
Gerald Malone, Senior Vice President of N/A N/A N/A

Alliance Capital Management L.P. and Portfolio
Manager

00250.0073 #443809
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- UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

LORI WEINRIB, on Behalf of Herself and all . Civil Action No.

Others Smnlarly Situated,

Plaintifft,
V Vs,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH & INCOME
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH
. CARE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
-DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, INC.,-
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP GROWTH
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL
ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND, INC,,
- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
- SMALL CAP VALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER GROWTH
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN YALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN QUASAR FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT
INVESTOR SERIES PREMIER PORT, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERN STEIN
BALANCED SHARES, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL VALUEFUND, INC., . =~
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
‘REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY
INCOME PUNI%? INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

[Caption continues on next page|
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VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
- BLENDED STYLE SERIES — U.S. LARGE CAP
~ PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

ALL-ASIA INVESTMENT FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

GREATER CHINA’97 FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
PREMIER GROWTH FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GLOBAL SMALL CAP FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE
PRIVATIZATION FUND, INC., '
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORT, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR

SERIES PREMIER PORT, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR
SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS
GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND
QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S.
GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET
DEBT FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

GLOBAL STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI- |
MARKET STRATEGY TRUST, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SHORT DURATION,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE CALIFORNIA MUNI
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE DIVERSIFIED MUNI
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERMEDIATE NEW YORK MUNI
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME'FUND NATIONAL
" PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN




MUNT INCOME FUND ARIZONA
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND CALIFORNIA

- PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

MUNIINCOME FUND INSURED
CALIFORNIA PORTFCLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME -
FUND MASSACHUSETTS PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME

'FUND MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, INC,,

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIQ, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND NEW YORK PORTFOLIOQ, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND OHIO PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND PENNSYLVANIA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME
FUND VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO, INC.
(collectively known as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
REGISTRANTS”); ALLIANCE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT HOLDING L.P.; ALLIANCE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P.; ALLIANCE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CORPORATION;
AXA FINANCIAL, INC.; GERALD MALONE,
CHARLES SCHAFFRAN; EDWARD J. STERN;
CANARY CAPITAL PARTNERS, LLC;
CANARY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT,
LLC; CANARY CAPITAL PARTNERS, LTD.;
and JOHN DOES [- 100, '

Defendants.

| Plaintiff alleges the following based upon the investigation of p“laintiff" s counsel, which

included a revied of United States Securities and Exch.ange Commission (“SEC”) filings as well
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as other regulatory filings and reports and advisories about the AllianceBernstein Funds (as
defined in the caption of this case, above), press releases, and media reports about the

AllianceBernstein Funds. Plaintiff believes that substantial additional evidentiary support will

~ exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportunity for discovery.

NATURE OF THE ACTION
1. This is a federal class action on behalf of ‘a class cénsisting of all persons other
than defendants who pufchased or otherwise acq‘uired,‘ owned or sold shares or other ownership
units of one or more of the mﬁtual funds in the AllianceBernstein faﬁdly of funds (i.e., the

AllianceBernstein Funds as defined belowl) between October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003,

'AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund,
AllianceBernstein, Disciplined Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Mid~cap Growth Fund,
AllianceBemstein Real Estate Investment Fund, AllianceBernstein Growth Fund,
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Biotechnology Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Small Cap
Value Fupd, AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series

~Technolégy Port, AllianceBernstein Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund,

AllianceBemstein Technology Fund, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Premier Port,

~ AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, AllianceBernstein

Disciplined Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, AllianceBemstein
International Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, AllianceBermnstein
Small Cap Value Fund, AllianceBemstein Utility Income Fund, AllianceBernstein Value Fund,
AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series-U.S. Large Cap Portfolio, AllianceBernstein All-Asia
Investment Fund, AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Greater China’97
Fund, AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, AllianceBernstein International
Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund,
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series
Biotechnology Port, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Premier Port, AllianceBernstein
Select Investor Series Technology Port, AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, .
AllianceBernstein Bond Fund Corporate Bond Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Bond Fund Quality
Bond Portfolio, AllianceBemnstein Bond Fund U.S. Government Portfolio, AllianceBernstein

~ Emerging Market Debt Fund, AllianceBemstein Global Strategic Income Trust,

AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, AllianceBemstein Multi-market Strategy Trust,
AllianceBermstein Short Duration, AllianceBernstein Intermediate California Muni Portfolio,
AllianceBernstein Intermediate Diversified Muni Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Intermediate New
York Muni Portfilio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund National Portfolio,
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in;:lusive_:, and who were damaged thereby (the “Class”™). Plaintiffs seek to pursue remedies
ﬁnder the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”) and the Investmént Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Investment Advisers Act™). |
2. | This action chargesb defendants with engaging in an unlawful and deceitful course

of cénduct designed to improperly financially advantage defendants to the detriment of plaintiffs
and the other(mémbers of the Class. As part and parcel df defendants’ unlawful conduct, the
Fund Defendants, as defined below, in clear contravention of their fiduciary responsibilities, and
disclosure obligations, failed to properly disclose: |

(a) - Thatselect févorcd customers were allowed to engage in illegal “late
- trading,” a practice more fully described herein, whereby an investor may place an order to
purchase fund shares after 4:00 p.m. and have that order filled at that day’s closing net asset
value; and

(b) That select favored customers were improperly ;Lllowed to “tire” their
mutual fund t.rades.' Such timing, as more fully described herein, improperly allows an investor
to trade in and out of a mutual fund to exploit short-term mdves and inefficiencies m the manner
in which the mutual funds price their shares.

On Séptember 30, 2003, before the market opened, Alliance Capital Management,

AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Arizona Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund
California Portfolio AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Insured California Portfolio,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Insured National Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni
Income Fund Florida Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Massachusetts Portfolio,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Michigan Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund
Minnesota Portfolio, AllianceBemstein Muni Income Fund New Jersey Portfolio,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund New York Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income
Fund Ohio Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Pennsylvania Portfolio, Fund
‘Virginia Portfoli#, College-bound Fund Sm (collectively known as “AllianceBernstein Funds”).

5
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| L;P.,_ issued a press rélease tevealing that it had been contacted by the Securities and Exchange
Cormnission- and the New York State Attorney Generél’s Office in connection with the
fegulators’ investigation of the mutual fund industry’s practices of late trading andb market
timing. Alliance Capital Management announced that as a result of its own ‘intem.all
: ixﬁestigétion, it had identified conflicts of in;terests with respect to market timing transactions,
ieading to the suspension of defendant Gerald Malone, a portfolio manager of cerfain
AllianceBemstein Fqnds and defendant Charles Schaffran, an executive salesperson of Alliance
hedge f;mds., - | A |

‘3. Subsequently, on October 1, 2003, The Wall Stfeel Journal reported that
defendants Malone and Schaffran ailowed certain investors to make raéid trades in
AllianceBernstein Funds that were managéd by Malone, in exchange for large investments in
certain Alliance hedge funds also managed by Malone. Moreover, the article stated that
| accdrding to documents préduced by Alliance Capital Managemc11t pursuant to a subpoena by
the Attorney General’;s Ofﬁce‘.,v defendant Edward Stern placed late trades through Bank of
Arﬁerioa for certain AllianceBernstein Funds. Bank of America has been named as a defendant
in numerous re‘c‘ently filed acfions concerning its alleged participation in a wrongful and illegal
scheme which allowed the Canary Defendants, defined herein, to engége in late trading and
market timing in mutual fund families, including Janus, One Group, Strong, and Nations funds. |
As a’result of defendants’ wrongful and‘illeg‘al misconduct in AllianceBernstein Funds, plaintiffs
and members of the Class Sﬁffered damages. |

JURISDICTICON AND VENUE

4. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to § 27
A :




o

of fhe Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C, § 78aa); Section 22 of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. §
77v); Section 80b-14 of the Investment Advisers Act (15 U.S.C.§ 30b-14); and 28 U.S.C. §§
1331, _1?:37. | | |

5. Many of the acts eharged' herein, ‘inéluding the prepération and dissemination of
materially false and'misleadivng ipformation, occﬁire‘d in substa.nﬁal part Iin this District. |
Defendints conducted vother substantial business within this District >ar1d many Class members
reside Within this District. Defendants Alliance Capital‘ Management Holdi_hg L.P., Alliance
Capital Management, -L.P.‘, Alliance Capital Managemeﬁt Corpora_ltion, and AXA Fiﬁancial, Inc.

~maintain offices in this District. | |

6.  Inconnection with the acts alleged in this complaint, defendants, directly or
indirectly, used the means and instrumeﬁtalities of interstate comﬁlerce, including, bﬁt not
limited to, the mails, intcrstgte telephone communications and thé facilities of the national
securities mél'kets. | | |

| PARTIES |

7. Plaintiff Lori Wéinrib, as set forth in her certiﬁcaﬁon, which is attached herete
and incorporated by reference here‘in,v-purchased units of the A‘llia.nceBernvstein American
Govermhent Income Trust [nvestment during the Class Périod and has been damaged thereby.

8.  The AllianceBemstein Amén'cas Government Income Trust is among the
AlIianéeBernstein Funds as defined in the caption above.

9. B Each of the AllianceBernstein Funds, includiﬁg the AllianceBemstein Americas
Government Incoﬁe Truyst, are mutual funds that are regulated by the Iﬁvestment Company Act

of 1940, that are managed by defendant Alliance Capital Management, L.P., and that buy, hold,
. ‘ v

At
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aﬁd sell shares or other ownership units that are subject to the misconduct alleged in this
complaint,
10. Defendant Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. (“Alliance Holding”) isa

publicly—tfaded holding cofnpany which provides investment management services through
_defendent Alliance Capital Management, L.P. (“Alliance. Capital Management”). Alliance
,' Holding is incorporated in Delaware with its principal place of business located at 1345 Avenue
of the Americas, New York, New York 10105. ‘Alljance Holding is the ultﬁmate parent of the
~ AllianceBernstein Funds and the parent compeny of, and controls Alliance Capital Management
and the AllianceBemstein Registrents. As of March 31, 2003, Alliance Holding owned |
approximately 30.7 percent of the outstanding shares of Alliance Capital Management.

| 11, Defendant Alliance Capital Managem.ent‘ is registered as an investment adviser
under the Investment Advisers Act and managed and advised the AllianceBernstein Funds
throughout the Class Period. DL}ring this period, Alliance Capital Management had ultimate
resbonsibility for overseeing the day-to-daymanagement of the Al'lianceBemstein Funds.
Alliance Capital Ma.negemenf is located at 1345 Avenue of the Amel'ieas, New York, New York
10105.

_ 12. Defendant Alliance Capital Management Corporation (“Alliance Corporation”) is

a wholly-owned éubsidiary of defendaﬁt AXA Financial, Inc, (“AXA”), and the general partner -
~of defenda11ts Alliance Holding and Alliance Capital Management. Alliance Corporation owns
100,000 partnership units in Alliance Holding, and a 1 percent general partnership interest in
Alliance Capital Management. Alliance Corporation is located at 140 Br_oadway, New York,

New York 10005.‘
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13. Defendant AXA, a unit of Europe’s second largest insurer AXA SA, is an
 international financial services organizations which nrovides financial advisory, insurance and
mvestment management products and services worldwide. AXA is a Délaware corporation and
rnaintainé_ its prhlcfpal place of business at 1290 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York
: 10104. AXA controls Alliance Capital Management by virtue of its géneral partnership interests
through Alliance Corporation and its 55.7 percent economic interest in Alliance Capital
Management as of March 31, 2003,

14. Defendalns AllianceBernstein Registrants are the registrants and issuers of the
.shares‘ of the Allianceléernstein Funds, and were acti\}e participants in the unlawful scheme
alleged herein.

15.  Defendant Gerald Malone was at all relevant times a Senior Vice President at
Alliance Capital Management and a portfolio rnénager of severnl AllianceBernstein Funds and
Alliance hedge funds, and was an active participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.

16. | Defendant Charles Schaffran was at all relevant times a rnarketing executive at
Alliance Capital Management who sold Alliance hedge funds to invéstors, and was an active
participant in the unlawful schelne al Ieged herein.

17. Alliance Hoiding, Alliance Co:poration, Alliance Capital Management, AXA, and
the AllianceBernstein Registrants are referred to collectively henéin as the “Fund Defendants.” .

18. Defendant Canary Capital Partners, LLC, is a New Jersey ,li_mited liability
company with offices at 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucus, New Jersey. Canary Capital Partners, LLC,
was an active participant in the unlawful scheme alleged berein.

19. Defendant Canary Investment Management, LLC, is a New Jersey limited
‘"«

)
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liébility company, with offices ét 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucﬁus; New Jersey. Canary'Investment
Mvanagement, LLC, was an active participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.
20.  Defendant Canary Capital Partners, Ltd., is a Bermuda limited liabil.ity company.
Canary Capital Paﬂneré, Ltd., was an active_ p%n’ticipemt iﬁ the unlawful séhemé alleged herein.
21, Defendant Edward J. Stern (;‘Stern”) isa %esident éf New York, New York. Stern
was the man‘agingv prinéipal of Canary Capital Partners, LLC, Canary Investment Management,
‘LLC, and Canary Cap'ital Partners, Lt_d. and was an active pa.rticipant in the uﬁlawful scheme
alleged herein. | |
22, Defendants Canary(Capital Partners, LLC; vCanary Capital Partners, Ltd.; Canary
Tnvestment Management, LLC; and Stern are collectively referred to herein as the “Canary
Defendanfs.”
23.  The true names and capacities of defendants sued herein as John Does 1 through
100 are other active participants with the Fund defendants in the widespread unlawful conduct
alleged herein whose identities ha{fe yet to be aséertained. Iﬁcluded amongst the John Doe
defendants are certain AJIiance hedge funds that have beén referenced in news articles in
connection with the misconduet alleged herein and have yet to be identified. ‘Such defendants,
and othér as yet unknown Doe defendants, were secretly permitted to engagé in improper late
trading and timing at thevexpense of ordinary AllianceBerﬁstein Funds investors, such as
plaintiffs and the other members of the Class, in exchange for which these John Doe defendants
. proyided remuneration to the Fund Defendants. Plaintiff will seek to amend this complaint to

state the true names and capacities of said defendants when they have been ascertained.
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PLAINTIFE’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
24.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
v Procedﬁrc 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all persons or entities who
purchaséd or otherwise acquired, 'owne'dv or sold shares of the or like interests in -
AllianceBernstein Funds, between October 2, 1998 and September 29,‘2003, and who were
damaged thereby. Plaintiff and each of the Class members purchased shares or other owne'rship
units in AllianceBernstein Funds pursuant to a registration statement and prospectus during the
class period, or othérwis‘e owned shares in ‘the Funds, including those who sold some or all of
those shares. The registration statements and prospectuses pursuant té which plaintiff and the
othér Class members purchésed their shares or othef ownership units in the AllianceBernstein
Funds, are referred to collectively herein as the “Prospectuses.” Excluded from the Class are
| defendants, members of théir immediate families and their legal rcpresentatives(, heirs, successors
or assigns‘ and any entity in which defendants have or had a controlling interest.

25.  The members of the (ilass are so numerous that joinder of all membets is
impracticable. .While the exact number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time
and can only bé ascertained through appropriate discovery, pIaintiff believes that there are
thousands of membérs in the proposed Class. Record ow’ﬂers and other members of the Class
may be identified from records maintained by the AlliallccB ernstein Funds and may be notified
of the pendency of this action by fnail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used
in Securities class actions. |

26.  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all

mermmbers of the Class are similarly affected by defendants® wrongful conduct in violation of ‘
A

4
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federal law that is complained of herein.
27.  Plaintiff will fairly and adeqﬁately protect the interests of the members of the
Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities li.tigétioﬁ.

28, Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Amdng the
questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

| (a)i whether the federal securities laws were violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein; |
(b} whether statements made by defendants to the investing public during the
Class Period misrepresented material facts about the business, operations and financial
statements of :the Allian.ceBernStein Fuﬁds; and |
B (c)  to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the
proper measure of damages.

'29. A class action is superior to ail other available methods for the fair and efficient .
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is‘ impracticable. Furthermore, as
the damages suffered By i11diviciua1 Class members may be relatively small, the expense and
burden of individual litigation make it virtually ilﬁﬁossible for members of the Class to -
individually redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difﬁculty in the maﬁagement of -

this action as a class action.
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 SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Introduction: The Doublg Standard for Privileged Im@stors
30.  Mutval funds are meaﬁt to be long-term ihvestments and are therefore the favored
sav_ings Qéhicles for many Americans’ retirement and college funds. The AllianceBernstein
Funds were no exceptién; the AllianceBéms‘cein Funds’ website states: “A little planning goes a
long way. Whatever yoér long —~term goal, ‘we can help you begin to plan a sa?ings strategy. 1f
| your goal is listed below, let us show you how. [ want to invest for a comfortable'retiremént. -
i’m_saving for a college education; I’m saving toward a dream purchase.” [Emphasis added.]
31 However, unbeknownst to investors, from at least as early as Oétober 2,1998

defendants engaged in fraudulent m)d wrongful schemes_that enabled certain favored investors to
reap many millions of dollars in broﬁt, at the expense of the AllianceBernstein Funds’ investors,
including plaintiff and 0ﬂ1é1" members of the Class, through secret and illegal after-hours tradipg
_and timed trading. In exchange for aJloWihg and facilitating this improper conduct, the Fund
Defe11dénts received substantial fecs and other remuneration for themselves and their affiliates to
the detriment of plaintiff and the other members of the Class who knew nothing of these illicit
arrangements. Specifically, Allianpe Capital Management, as manager of the AllianceBernstein
Funds, and each of thé relcvi11t fund managers, profited from fees Alliance Capital Management
charged to the AllianceBernstein Funds that were measured as a percentage of the fees under
management. In exchange for tllie right to engage in illegal late tféding and timing, which hLl}rt
p]ain.tiff and other Class membérs, by artificially and materially distorting the value of the
AllianceBernstein Fuunds, the Canary Defendants, and the John Doé Defendants, agreed to park | |

substantial assets in certain of the Funds, thereby increasing the assets under AllianceBermnstein
& S

W
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F ﬁndé’ management and. the fees paid to AllianceBefnstein Funds’ managers. The assets parked
_in the Alli;einceBemstein Funds in exch'ange for the right to engage in late trading and timing have
- been referred to as “sticky assets.” Furthermore, the Canary Defendaﬁts secfetly disguised
adc‘h'tional,i improper compensation to the Fund Defendants as interest payments on monies
lééned by the Fund Defendants to the Canary Defendants for the purpose of financing the illegal

" scheme. The synergy between the Fund Defendants and the Canary Defencianfs hinged‘on
ordinary investors’ misplaced trust in the integrity of mutual fund companies and allowed
defc;ndants to profit handsqmely at the expense of plaintiff and other members of the Class.

Illegal Late Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and Other Members of the Class

32.  “Late trading” exploits the unique Way in which mutual funds, including the
Allia11§eBernstein Funds, set their prices. The daily priée of mutual fund shares is genefally
calculated once a day as of 4:00 p.m. EST. The price, known as the “Net Asset Value” or

| ‘NAV,” generally reflects the clésing prices of 1’.th: securities that comprise a given ﬁmd’;
portfolio, plus the value of ény cash that the fund manager maintains for the fund. Orders to buy,
sell or exchange mutual fund shares placed at or before‘4:OO p.m. EST on a given day receive
.tha‘t déy’é price. Ord_e;_s p.laced after 4:00 pm. EST are supposed to be filled using the following
day’s price. Unbeknownst to plaintiff and other members of the Class, and in violation of SEC
regulations, the Canary Defendants and the John Ijoe Defendants; secretly agreed with the Fund B

| Defendants that orders they placed after 4:00 p.m. on a given day would illegally receivé that
day’s price (as cfppésed t'o the next day’s price, which the or&er would have reéeived had it been
pfocessed lawfully). This illegal conduct allowed the Canary Defendants, and the John Doe

Defendants, to capitalize on market-moving financial and other information that was made
. ":
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pﬁblic after the close of trading at 4:00 p.m. while plaintiff and other mémbers of the Class, who
bought their AllianceB ernstein Funds shares lanully; could not. |

33, Hereisan illustration of how the favored treatment accorded to the Canary
Defendanfs took 1ﬁoney, dollar-for-dollar, out of the pockets of ofdinary AllianceBemstein
Funds investors, such as plaintiff and the other niembers of the Class: A mutual fund’s share
price is determined to be $10 per share for a given d.i\y. After 4:00 p.m., good news concerning
the fund’s constituént securities may have been made public, causing the price of the fund’s
underlying‘ securities to rise materially énd, correspondingly, causing the next day’s NAV to rise
and increasing ‘th‘e fund share price to $15. Under this example, ordinary investors plaéing an -
order to bﬁy after 4:00 p.m. oﬁ the day the news came out would haVe their orders filled at $15,
;che next day’s price. Defendanis’ scheme allvowed the Canary Defendants, and other favored
investors named hereti, to purchasé fund shares at tﬁe pre-4:00 p.m. price of $10 per share even
after the post-4:00 p.m. news came out and the market had already started to move upwards.
These favored inQestors wére therefore gua.ranteed a $5 per share profit by buying after tﬁe
market had closed at the lower price, available only to them,.and then selling the shares the next
day at the higher price. Because all shares sold by i.nvéstors are bought by the respective fund,
which must seIIv shares or use available cash for the purchase, Canafy’s profit of $5 per unit
comes, dollar-for-dollar, directly from the other fund investors. This- harmful practice, which
damaged plaintiff and other members of the Class, is completely undisclosed in the.
‘Prospectuses by whic‘;h the Allianc_eBemstein Funds were marketed and sold and pursuant to
which plaintiff and the other Class members purchased their AIliancéBémstein Funds éécurities.

Moreover, late trading is specifically probibited by the “forward pricing rule” embodied in SEC

15




regulations. See 17 C.F.R. §270.22¢—1(a).

Secret Timed Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and Qther Members of the Class

34, “_Timihg” is an arbitrage strategy involving short—term trading that can be used to
profit from mutual funds’ use of “stale” prices to caiculate the valﬁe of securities held in the
funds’ portfolio. These prices are “stale” because they do not necessarily reflect the “fair value”
of such securities as of the time the NAV is calc;ulated.‘ A typical example is a U.S. mutual fund
that holds J apén.ese securities. B’ecausfcv: of the time zone difference, the Japanese market may
close at‘2 a.m. New York time. If the U.S. mutual ﬁmci fnanager uses the closing prices of the
Japanese securities in his or her ﬁmd to arrive at an NAV at 4 p.m. m New York, he or she is
: ‘relying on market information that is fourteen hours old. If there have been positive market
| moves during the New York trading day thai \ﬁll cause the J épanese market to rise when it later
opens, the stale Japanese prices will not reﬂectb that .increase, and the fund’s NAV will be
artificially low. Put another way, the NAV would not reflect the true cﬁn"ent market value of the
stocks the fund holds. This and similar étrategies are known as “time zone arbitrage.”

35. A similar type of timing is possible in mutual funds that contain illiquid securities
such as high-yield bonds or small capitalization stocks. Here, the fact that some of the |
AllianceBernstein Funds’ un‘derlying securities may not have traded for hours before fhe New
York closing time can render the fund’s NAV stale and thus be susceptible to bcing timed. This
is sometimes known as “liquidity arbitrage.” ‘ .

36. Like late trading, -effective timing éaptqres an arbitragev profit. And like late
trading, arBitrage profit from timing comes dollen"-for-dollar out of the pockets‘ of the long-term .

investors: the timer steps in at the last moment and takes part of the buy-and-hold investors’
x :
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ubside whe.n the market goes up, so the next day’s NAV is reduced for those who are still in the
fund. If the timer sells short on bad days -- as Canéu‘y also did -- the arbitrage has the effect of
making the hext day’s NAV lower than it would otherwise have been, thus mégnifying the losses
that investors are experiencing in a déclining market.

- 37.  Besides the wealth transfer of arbitragé (called “dilution”), timers also harm their
target funds in a number of other wayé. They impose their transaction costs on the long-term
investors. Tradeé necessitated by timer redemptions can also result in the realization of taxable
capital gains at an undesirable time, or may result in managers having to sell stock into.a falling
market, |

38. It ié widely acknowledged that timing inures to the detrixﬁent of long-term mutual
fund investors and, because of this detrimental effect, the Prospectuses stated that timing is
monitored and that the Fund Defendants work to prevent it. These statements were materially
false and misleading becaﬁse,‘ not only did the Fund Defendants allow the Canary and Jo.hn Doe
Dkefendants to conduct tinﬁng trades, but, in the case of at least the Canary Defendants, they also
provided a trading platform, provided the Canary Defendants proprietary information about the
‘stocks held in the AllianceBemstéih Funds, financed the timing arbitrage strategy and sought to
profit and did profit from it. |

Defenﬂants’ Frauduleut Scheme '
'39.  On September 3, 2003, New York Attorney General Eliot Spitzer filed a
complaint charging fraud, amongst other violations of law, in connection with the unlawful
practices alleged herein and exposing the fraudulent and manipu]atiye practices charged here

with the particularity that had resulted from a confidential full-scale investigation (the “Spitzer
A '
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f Complaint™). The Spitzer 'Complaint alleged, with regard to the misconduct alleged herein, as
follows:

‘Canary engaged in late trading on a daily basis from in or about
March 2000 until this office began its investigation in July of 2003.
It targeted dozens of mutual funds and extracted tens of millions of
dollars from them. During the declining market of 2001 and 2002,
it used late trading to, in effect, sell mutual fund shares short. This
caused the mutual funds to overpay for their shares as the market

- went down, serving to magnify long-term investors’ losses. [. . .]

" [Bank of America] (1) set Canary up with a state-of-the-art
electronic trading platform [. . .] (2) gave Canary permission to
time its own mutual fund family, the “Nations Funds,” (3)
provided Canary with approximately $300 million of credit to
finance this late trading and timing, and (4) sold Canary derivative
short positions it needed to time the funds as the market dropped.
In the process, Canary became one of Bank of America’s largest
customers. The relationship was mutually beneficial; Canary made
tens of millions through late trading and timing, while the various
parts of the Bank of America that serviced Canary made millions
themselves. - :

40, Accofding to mutual fund orders and other records obtained by the Attorney |
General’s Office, the Canary >D‘efendants used an. AllianceBernstein Fund for its late trading. and
mafket ﬁming practices. Au:clorclingr to the records, Canary sold shares of Alliance Grdwth &
Income—Furid énd invested the proceeds in a_ﬁ A]liam_:e money market fund in va late &ade
subinitted at 6:31 p.m. on January 13, 2003.

41.  On Septeﬁber 4,2003, The Wall Street .fournal published a front page story about |
the Spitzer Complaint under the headline: “Spitzer Kicks Off Fund Probe With a $40 Million
Settlement,” in which the New York Attorney General compared after-the-close trading to
“being aliowed to Bet oﬁ a hérse race after the race was over,” and which indicated that the

fraudulent practices enumerated in the Spitzer Complaint were just the tip of the iceberg. In this
. P _ | o

£
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regard, the article stated: A

42.

investors.”

[. .] “The late trader,” he said, “is being allowed into the fund
after it has closed for the day to participate in a profit that would
otherwise have gone completely to the fund’s buy-and-hold

- In a statement, Mr. Spitzer said “the full extent of this

complicated fraud is not yet known,” but he asserted that “the
mutual-fund industry operates on a double standard” in which
certain traders “have been given the opportunity to manipulate
the system. They make illegal after-hours trades and improperly
exploit market swings in ways that harm ordinary long-term
investors.” '

For such long-term investors, rapid trading in and out of funds
raises trading costs and lowers retwrns; one study published last
year estimated that such strategies cost long-term investors 35
billion a year. :

The practice of placing late trades, which Mr. Stern was accused of
at Bank of America, also hurts long-term shareholders because it
dilutes their gains, allowing latecomers to take advantage of events
after the markets closed that were likely to raise or lower the "
funds’ share price. [Emphasis added.] ‘

The Wall Street Journal reported that the Canary Defendants had settled the

. charges against them, agreeing to pay a $10 million fine and $30 million in restitution. On

September 5, 2003, The Wall St}’eet Joz)rnal reported that the New Yofk Attorney General’s

Office had subpoenaed “a large number of hedge funds” and mutual funds as part of its

investigation, “underscoring concern among investors that the improper trading of mutual-fund

shares could be widespread” and that the SEC, joining the investigation, plans to send letters to

mutua] funds holding about 75% of assets under management in the U.8S. to inquire about their

practices with respect to market-timing and fund-trading practices.

43,

On September 5, 2003, the trade publication, Morningstar reported: “Already this
£ v :
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is the biggest scandal to hit the industry, and it may grow. Spitzer says more companies will be
accused in the coming weeks. Thus, investors, and fund~company executives alike are looking
~ at some uneasy times.”

44.  On September 30, 2003, Alliance Capital Management announced_ in a press
release published over PR Newswire that the New York State Attorney General and the SEC had
contacted Alliance Capital Management in connection with the regulators’ investigation of
market timing and late trading practices in the mutual fund industry. Additibnally, Alliance
Capital Management revealed the following:

based on the preliminary results of its own ongoing internal
investigation concerning mutual fund transactions, it has identified
conflicts of interest in connection with certain market timing
transactions. In this regard, Alliance Capital has suspended two
of its employees, one of whom is a porifolio manager of the
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, and the other of whom is
an executive involved with seiling Alliance Capital hedge fund
products. [Emphasis added.] :

45, On October 1, 2003, an article appearing in The Wall Street Journal identified the
two Alliance Capital Management employees Who were suspended as a result of their
involvement in conflicts of interests as dcfendants Gerald Malone and Charles Schaffran, The
article revealed that Alliance Capital Management had been subpoenaed by the New York State
Attorney General's Office early on in its inquiry into the mutual fund industry, and further,

_elaborated bn defendants Malone and Schaffran’s wrongful and illegal misconduct:
certain investors were allowed to make rapid trades in a mutual

Sfund managed by Mr. Malone in exchange for making large
investments in Alliaace hedge funds also run by Mr. Malone[.]

® % ok

M, Schaffran is alleged to have helped a broker at a Las Vegas
20




firm called Security Brokerage Inc. gain the ability to make short—
term trades in shares of Mr. Malone’s mutual fund in exchange for
investments into Mr. Malone’s hedge funds(.]

* % ¥

As previously reported, [defendant Edward] Stern’s firm, Canary,
appears to had arrangements allowing short—term trading with
Alliance funds. . . Meanwhile, according to a copy of trade orders
obtained by [Attorney General Elliot] Spitzer’s office, on the
evening of Jan. 13 this year, Mr. Stern placed late trades through

 Bank of America’s trading system to sell 4,178,074 shares of
Alliance Growth and Income Fund, which at the time would
have amounted to an approximately fsicj $§11 million transaction.
(Emphasis added.]

[n addition to the AllianceBemstein Technology Fund, the article stated that defendant Malone

élso nianaged two technology hedge funds, the ACM Technology Hedge Fund and the ACM

Technology Partners LLP.

The Prospectuses Were Materially False and Misleading
46.  Plaintiff and each member of the Class Werc entitled to, and did receive, one of
the Prospectuses, each of which contained substantially the same materially false and misleading
statements regarding the AllianceBernstein Funds’ policies on late trading and timed trading, and
acquired shares pursuant to one or more of the Prospectuses.
47,  The Prospe'ctuses contained materially false and misleading statements with
respect to how shares are priced, typically representing as follows:
How the Funds Value Their Shares
The Funds’ net asset value or NAV is calculated at 4 p.m., Eastern
time, each day the Exchange is open for business. To calculate
NAYV, a Fund’s assets are valued and totaled, liabilities are
subtracted, and the balance, called net assets, is divided by the

number of shares outstanding. The Funds value their securities at
their current market value determined on the basis of market
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quotations, or, if such quotations are not readily available, such
other methods as the Funds’ directors believe accurately reflect fair
market value.

48.  The Prospectuses, in explaining how orders are processed, typically represented
that orders received before the end of a business day will receive that day’s net asset value per
share, while orders received after close will receive the next business day’s price, as follows:

Your order for purchase, sale, or exchange of shavres is priced at
the next NAV calculated after your order is received in proper
Sorm by the Fund. Your purchase of Fund shares may be subject
to an inttial sales charge. Sales of Fund shares may be subject to a
contingent deferred sales charge or CDSC.

® k%

HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES

You may exchange your Fund shares for shares of the same class
of other Alliance Mutual Funds (including AFD Exchange
Reserves, a money market fund managed by Alliance). Exchanges
of shares are made at the next defermined NAV, without sales or
Service charges. You may request an exchange by mail or
telephone. You must call by 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, to receive that
day’s NAV. The Funds may modify, restrict, or terminate the
exchange service on 60 days’ written notice.

HOW TO SELL SHARES

You may "redeem” your shares (i.e., sell your shares to a Fund) on
any day the Exchange is open, either directly or through your
financial intermediary. Your sales price will be the next—
determined NAV, less any applicable CDSC, after the Fund
receives your sales request in proper form. Normmaelly, proceeds will
-be sent to you within 7 days. If you recently purchased your shares
by check or electronic funds transfer, your redemption payment
may be delayed until the Fund is reasonably satisfied that the
check or electronic funds transfer has been collected (which may
take up to 15 days). [Emphasis added.]

49.  The Prospectuses falsely stated that Alliance Capital Management actively
X . . .

-

22




- -

séfeguards shareholders from the harmful cffe‘cts of timing. For examplé, in language that
typically appeared in the Prospectuses, the March 31, 2003 AllianceBernstein Americas
Govenﬁnent Income Trust Prospectus stated as follows:

. Each a Fund may refuse any order to pﬁrchase shares. In this regard, the

Funds reserve the right to restrict purchases of shares (including

through exchanges) when there appears to be evidence of a pattern of -

frequent purchases and sales made in response to short-term

considerations. . . .

The Prospectuses failed to disclose and misrepresented the following materi‘al and
adverse facts which damaged plaintiff and the other members of the C]a.ss: |

(a) .that defendants had entered into an agreement allowing the Canary-
Defendants and the John Doe Defendants to time“their trading of ‘the AllianceBenvmsteinvFunds
shai'es and to “late trade”; |

(b)  that, pursuant to that agreement, Canary and other favored investors
regularly timed and late-traded the AllianceBernstéin Funds’ shares;

(c) that, con"trary fo the express fepresentatidns in the PrbspectuseS, the
AllianceBernstein Funds enforced their policy against frequent traders selectively, i.e., they did
~ not enforce it against the Canary Dgfendants and the John Doe Defendants and they waived the
redemption fees that thesé defendants should have been requirea to pay pursuant to stated .
AllianceBernstein Funds policies;

(d)  that the Fund Defendants regularly allowed Canary and other favored
investors to engage in trades that were disruptive to the efficient management of the

AllianceBemstein Funds and/or increased the AllianceBernstein Funds’ costs and thereby

reduced the AllianceBernstein Funds’ actual performance; and
X '

T

23




(e) that the amount of compensation pajd by the AllianceBernstein Funds to

~ Alliance Capital Management, bécause of the AllianceBernstein Funds’ secret agreemeﬁ with
Canary and others, provided substantial additional undisclosed compensation .to Alliance Capital
Management by the AllianceBernstein Funds gnd their respecﬁve shareholders, including

plaintiff and other members of the Class.

Dgfendants’ Scheme and Fraudulent Course of Business
50.  Each defendant is liable for (i) making false statements, or for failing to disclose
materially adverse facts in connedion with thé purchase or' sale of shares of the
: AlliénceBemstein Funds, or otherwise, and/or (ii) participating in a scheme td defraud and/or a
course of business that opérated as a fl’al-ld or deceit on purchasers of the AllianceBernstein
© Funds shares during the Claés Périod (the “Wrongful Conduct™). This Wrongful .Conduct
‘enabled defendants to profit at the expense of pléintiff and the other Class members.

Additional Scienter 'Allegations

51, As alleged herein, defendants acted with scienter in that defendants knew that the

public.documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the AllianceBernstein
Funds were materially false and misleéding; knew that such statements or doéuments would be
issued or disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and subétalltially participated or
Iacquiesced in the issuance or disseminétion of such §tatement$ or documents as primary
Violationé of the federal securities laws. Defendants, by virtue of théir receipt of information
reflecting the true facts regarding AllianceBernstein Funds, their control over, and/or receipt
and/or modification of AlliaﬁceBemstein Funds’ allegedly materially misleading misstatements

and/or their associations with the AllianceBernstein Funds which made them privy to
x : '

.

24




o

.c:on_ﬁ dential proprietary information concerning the AllianceBemsteiﬁ Funds, participated in the
fl'audulen,t scheme alleged herein. |

52. Additionally, the Fund Defendanté and the Fund Individual Defendants w;ere
highly motivated to allow a.ﬁd facilitate the wrongful conduf:t alleged herein and participated in
and/or had actual knowiedge of the fraudulent conduct alleged herein. In exchange for allowing
. the unlawful praétices alleged herein, the Fund Defendants and Fund Individual Defendants-.
received, amdng other things, increased management fees from “sticky assets” and other hidden
compensation paid in the form of inflated interest ‘payments on loans to the Canary and John Doe
De'fendaﬁts. | |

53.  The Canary Dgfendams and John Doe Defendants were motivated to participate
in the wréngful scheme by the enormous profits they derived thereby; They systematically
puréued the scheme with fﬁll knowledge of its consequences to other investors.

VIOLATIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT |

FIRST CLAIM

Against The AllianceBernstein Registrahts For Violations
' of Section 11 Of The Securities Act

54.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein, except that, for purposés of this claim, plaintiff expressly excludes and disclaims
any allegatioﬁ that could be construed as alleging fraud or intentional or reckless misconduct and

otherwise incorporates the allegations contained above.

55. This claim is brought pursuant to Section 11 of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §
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77ik, on behalf of the plaintiff an.d other members of the Class @ho purchased shares of the
AllianceBernstein Funds between October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003, inclusive against the
AllianceBernstein Registrants.

56. The Alli_zinceBemStein Registrants are the registrants for the fund shares sold to
_blaintiff aﬁd the othér members of 'the’ Class and are statutorily liable under Section 11. The
AllianceBernstein Registrants issued, caused to be issued and pzuﬁcipated in the issuance of the
materially false and misleading written statefnents and/or omissiqns of material facts that were
contained in the Prospectuses.

57. Plaintiff we;s provided with the AllianceBernstein Prospectus and, similarly, prior
10 pur'chésing units of each of the othef AllianceBernstein Funds, all Class members likewise

‘received the appropriate prospectus. Plaintiff and other Class members purchased shares of the
AllianceBernstein Funds pursuant or traceable té the relevant false and misleading Prospectuses
éxﬁ were damaged thereb};. |

58.  Asset forth hefein, the statements contained in the Prospectuses, when they
became effeétive, were mvaterially false and misleading for a number of reasdns, including that
they stated that it was th¢ practice of the All’iaﬁceBemstein Funds to monitor and take steps to

prevent timed t;ading becguse of its advefse effect on fund investors, and that the trading price
was defennined as of 4 p.m. each trading day with respect to all investors when, in fact, Canary
and othér select investors (the John Does named as ciefendants herein) were allowed to engage in
timed trading and late-trade at the previous day’s price. The Prospectuses failed to disclose and‘
misrepresented, inter élia, the fquwing material and adverse facts:

(a) that defendants had entered into an unlawful agreement allowing Canary
X
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.t"o time its trading of the AllianceBernstein Funds shares and to “late tréde;”

(bj - that, pursuant to that agreement, Canary regularly timed and late-traded
the All‘iavnceBernstein Funds shares;

(c)  that, contrajy to the express representatidns m the Prospecﬁiscs, the
AllianceBernstein F unds enforced their policy against frequent traders and late trading
selectively, ie. ,b they did nbt enforce it against Canary; |

(d)  that the Fund Defendaﬁts regularly vallo»vved Canary to engage in trades
that were disruptive to the efficient management of the AlliallceBenistéin Funds and/or increased
the AlliancéBernstein Fund‘s’. costs and thereby reduced the AllianceBernstein Funds’ actual
performance; and

(o) | ~ the Prospectuses faﬁed to disclose that, pursuant to the unlawful
agreements, the Fund Defendants, Canary Defendants and John Doe Defeﬁdants benefitted
financially at the expense of the AllianceBernstein F unds investors ixlcluding plaintiff and the
other members of the Class.i

- 59, At the time she purchased the AllianceBernstein Funds shares traceable to the
defective Prospe.btus;:s, plaintiff and Cléss members was without knowledge of the facts
concerning the false and misleading statements or omission alléged herein and could not

reasonably have possesséd such knowledge. This claim is brought within the applicable

statute of limitations.

27




SECOND CLAIM

Against Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,
and AXA as Contrel Persons of The AllianceBernstein Registrants
- For Violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act

60; Plaintiff repeaté and reallegeé each and every allegation contained above, éxcép;
that for purposes of this cIvaim, plaintiff expressly excludes and disclaimé any élleg’ation that
‘could be éonstrued as alleging fraud or intentional recklgss misconduct and otherwise
iucorpdrates the allegations contained above.

61.  This claim is Brought pursuant to Séction 15 of the Securities Act agairist
Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporatipn, Alliance-quitéI Management; and AXA, e‘ach asa
control‘persqn of the AlliénceBeﬁstein Registrants. It is appropriate to treat these defendants as
a group for pleading purposés and tov pre‘sume that the false, misleading, and incomplete
information conveyed in the AllianceBernstein Funds’ public filings, press releases and other
publications are the collective actions .Of Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Ailiance
Capitél Management, an& AXA.

62.  The AllianceBernstein Registrants are liab]e under Section 11 of the Securities
Act as set forth herein. |

63. Eachof A]Iiance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,
| and AXA was a “control person” of the AllianceBernstein Registrants within the meaning Qf
Section 15 of the Securities Act by virtue of its position of operational control and/or ownership.
At the time plaintiff and other members of tﬁe Class pufchased shares of AllianceBernstein

Funds -- by virtue of their positions of control and authority over the AllianceBernstein
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Rogistralxts — Alliance Holding, Alliance Corpofation, Alliance Capital Managémenf, and AXA
directly and ‘indir‘ectly, had the power and authority, and exercised the same, to cao.se the
AllianceBemstoin Registrants to engage in thc wrongful conduct complained of herein. All_iance
Holding, Alliance Cofporation, Alliance Capital Managément, and AXA issued, caused to be
issued, and participated in the issuance of ‘maten'ally false and misleading statements in the

. Prospectuses.

64. Pursuant to‘Section 15 of the Securities Act, by reason of the foregoing, Alliance
Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA are liable to plaintiff
and the other membérs of the Class for the AllianceBernstein Registrants® primary violations of
Section 1 1 of the Secu1'ities Act.

65. By virtue of the foregoing, plaintiff and the other members of the Class are
enﬁtled to damages against Alliance Ho]‘ding‘, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital
Management, and AXA. |

VIOLATIONS OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE:
- FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE '

66. At all relevant times, the market for AllianceBernstein Funds was an
bleﬁ’lcient market for the following reasohs, among others:
(2) The AllianceBernstein Funds met the requirements for listing, and
were listed and activoly bought and sold through a highly efficient and autofnated markot;
(b) As regulated entities, periodic public reports ‘concerning the

AllianceBernstein Funds were regularly filed with the SEC;

x5
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(c) Persons associated with the AllianceBernstein Funds regularly !
communicated with public investors via established market communication mechanisms,
including through regular disseminations éf press releases on the national circuits of major
newswire services‘.and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as communications
withr_the financial press and other similar reporting services; and

(d) The AllianceBernstein Funds were followed by several securities
analy‘sts empldyed by major brokerage.ﬁrms who wrote reports which were distributed to the
" sales force and éertain customers of their respective brokerage firms. Each of these reports was
publicly available and entered the public marketplace. |

67.  Asaresult Qf the foregoing, the market for the AllianceBemstein Funds
promptly digested currerﬁ information regérding AllianceBernstein Funds from all publicly
available sources and reflected such infonﬁatbn in the 1.'espe§ﬁve AllianceBemstein Funds
NAV. Investors who purchased or otherwise acquired shares or interests in the
' Alliéx1f:eB§:rnstein FundS relied on the integrity of the market for such securities. Under these
circumstances, all purchaseré of the AllianceBernstein Funds during the Class Period suffered
similar injury throd_gh their purchasé or acquisition of AlliénceBerﬁstein Funds securities at

~ distorted priées that did not reflect the risks and costs of the continuing course of conduct

alleged herein, and a presumption of reliance applies.

 THIRD CLAIM

Viclation Of Section 10(b) Of
The Exchange Act Against And Rule 10b—5
Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants

68. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
1‘.

B
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" sét forth herein excepf for Claims brougﬁt pursuant to the Securities Act.
69.  During the Class Pc;riod, each of the deféndants carried out a plan, scheme and
- course of conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did deceive the
investing public, inciuding plaintiff and _the} other Class members, as alleged heréin and cause
pla_intiffr and other‘ members of the Class to purchase or sell AlllianceBemstein Funds’ shares or
interests at distorted .prices and otherwise suffered damages. In ﬁll'ﬁllerance of this unlawful
scheme, plan and course of conduct, defendants, and each of them, took the actioﬁs set forth
herein. “

' 'fO. Deféndants (i) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to deﬁau&; (ii) made
“untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the -
statements not misleading; and (ii1) enéaged. in acts, practices, and a course of business which
operated as a fraﬁd.and deceit upon the purchasers and sellers of the AllianceBernstein Funds’
securities, i_ncluding plaintiff and other members of the Class, in an effort to enrich themselves

through undisclosed manipulative trading tactics by which they mongﬁlly appropriated
AllianceBernstein ‘Funds" assets an_d otherwise distorted the priciﬁg of their securities in violation
of Section IO(b)ﬂof the Exéhange Act and Ru]e 10b-5. All defendants are sued as primary
~ participants in the‘ wrongful and illegal conduct and sclnemé charged herein.
71. Defendants, indivi&ually and in concert, direcﬂy and indirectly, by the use, means
or'insfrumental_i_ties of fnterstqte commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a
continuous course of conduct to conceal adversé material information about the

AllianceBernstein Funds’ operations, as specified herein.

72, These defendanfs employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud and a
X

L)
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céurse of conduct and scheme as alleged ﬁerein to unlawfully manipulate and profit from
secretly timed and late trading and thereby engaged in transactions, practices and a course of
busi_nesé which operated as a fraud and deceit upbn plaintiff and members Qf the Class.

73.’ The defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of
matérial vfacts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that the}.rvfailed to
aééertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such
’defendants’ material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done .kno'wingly or recklessly and
for the purpose and effect of concealing the ‘tmth.

74.  Asaresult of the dissémination of the rﬁateﬁal.ly false and miéleading information
and failure td disclose mafen'al facts, as set forth above, the marlket price of the
| AllianceBernstein Funds securities were distorted during the Class Period such that they did not
reflect the risks and costs of the continuing course of conduct alleged herein. In ignorance of
these‘facts that market prices of the shares were distorted, and relying directly or indirectly on
the false and misleading‘statevments made by the Fund Defendants, or upon the integrity of the
market in which the éecmities trade, and/or on thé absence of material adverse informatioﬁ that
was known to or recklessly disregarded by defendants but not disclosed i_n public statements by
defendants during the Class Period, plaintiff and the other members of the Class acquired and/or
sold the shares or interests in the AllianceBernstein Funds during the Class Period at distorted
prices and were damaged thereby.

75. At the time of said m.iérepresentations éu_ld om.,issions, plaintiff and other
members of the Class WGre'ignorant of their falsity,‘and believed them té be true. Had plaintiff

and the other members of the Class and the marketplace known of the truth concerning the
A :

»
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| AllhanceBernstein F unds’ operations, which were not disclosed by defendants, plaintiff and
other members of the Class would not have purchased or otherwise acquired their shares or, if
they had ac_qﬁired such sﬁares or other intereéts during the Class Period, they would not have
done so at the distorted prices which they paid and/or would not have sold their shares at the
distorted prices they received. - o

76. By vjnuc of the foregoing, dcfencklantsA have violated Section 10(b) of the
EXchange Act, and Rule 10b-$ promulgated thereunder. |

77.  Asadirect and proximate result of defendants’ wrongﬂ conduct, plaintiff and
the other members of the Clasé‘suffered‘ damages in connection with their respective purchases
and sales of the AllianceBernstein Funds shares during the Class Period.

FOURTH CLAIM

Against AXA (as a Control Person of Alliance Corparation); Alliance Corperation (as a
Control Person of Alliance Holding); Alliance Holding (as a Control Person of Alliance
Capital Management); and Alliance Capital Management (as a Control Person of
AllianceBernstein Registrants); For Violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act

78.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges eacﬁ andv every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein except for Claims brought pursuant to the Securities Act.
79.  This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act against
AXA as a control persoh of Al]_:iance Corporation, Alliance Corporation»as a control person of
. Alliance Holding, Alliance Holding as a control person of the Alliance Capital Managéme_nt, and
Alliance Capital Management as a control person of AllianceEemstein Registrants.
80.  Itisappropriate to treat these defendants as a group for pleading purposes and to

presume that the materially false, misleading, and incomplete information conveyed in the
A
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AllianceBernstein Fupds’ public filings, press releases and other publications are the collective
actions of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capital Managément, and
Allianquems'tein Registrénts. | |

81.  Each of AXA, Alliance Corporatioﬁ, Alliance Holding, and Alliance Capital
Mahagement acted as controlling persons of the AllianceBernstein Funds within the meaning of
Section 20(a) of the Exchangé Act for the reasons alleged herein. By virtue of their operational
and management control of the AllianceBerﬁstein Registrants’ respective' businesses and
systemétic invol?ement in the fraudulent scheme alleged herein, AXA, Alliance Corporation,
Alliance Holding, and Allié.nce Capital Management each had the power to influence and control
and did influence and control, direcﬂy 6r indirectly, the decision-making and actions of the
AllianceBemnstein Registrants, inclﬁding the contént and dissemination of the various statements
which plaintiff contend are false and mislea'ding. AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance
Holding, .and Alliance Capital Management, had the aEility to prevent the issuance of the
statements alleged to be false and misleading or cause such statements to be corrected.

82. In partiéular, eac.ﬁ of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, and Alliance
Capital Management, had direct Qnd supervisory involvement in the operations of the
AllianceBernstein Funds and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to control or
influence the particular transactions giving rise to tHe securities vfolations as alleged herein, and
exercised the same.

8v3. As set forth above, AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance
Capital Management, and AllianceBe1nstein Registrants each violated Section 10(b) and Rule

10b-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their positions as
A . :
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céntrolling pérsons, AXA, Ailiaﬁcé Corporation, Alliance Holding, and-Alliance Capital
Management, are liable pursuant to Section 20('a) of the Exchange Act. As a direct and
proximate result of defendants’ v‘vrongfﬂ conduct, plaintiff and other members of the Class
suffered damages in connéction with their purchaées of AllianceBermnstein Funds securities

during the Class Period.

VIOLATIONS OF THE INVESTMENT ADVISERS ACT

FIFTH CLAIM

For Violations of Section 206 of The Tnvestment Advisers
Act of 1940 Against BACAP [15 U.S.C. §80b-6 and 15 U.S.C. §80b-15]

84.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein.

85,  This Count is bas¢d lupon Section 206 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 ﬁ.S.C.
§80b-15. |

86.  Alliance Capital Management served as an “investment adviser” to plaintiff and
other members of the Class pursuant to the Investment Advisers Aét.

87. Asa ﬁduciafy pursuant tb the Investment Advisers Act, Alliance Capital
Management was required to serve plaintiff and other members of the Class in a manner in
accordance with the federal fiduciary standards set forth in Section 206 of the Investrnenf
 Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §80b-6, governing the conduct of investment advisers.

8.8. During ’the Class Period, Alliance Capital Management breached its fiduciary
duties owed to plaintiff and the other members of the Class by engaging in a deceptive |
con_ﬁivahce, scheme, pra#:tice and course of conduct pursuant té which they knowingly and/or
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fecklessiy engaged in acts, tx'anséctions,'practiges and courses of business V\.IfhiC‘h 6perated asa
fraud upon plainﬁff and other members of the Class. As detailed above, Alliance Capital
Management allowed theiCanaIy and John Doe Defendants to secretly engage in late trading and
timing of the AlliaﬁceBemstein Funds shares. The purposes and effect of said scheme, practice
‘and course of conduct was to enrich Alliance Capital Management, among other defendants, at
the expense of plaintiff and other members of the Class.

89.  Alliance Capital Management breached its fiduciary duty owed to plaintiff and
the Class members by engaging in the aforesaid transactions, practices' and courses of business
knowingly or recklessly so as to coristitute a deceit and fraud u.pon plaintiff and the Class -
members.
| - 90.  Alliance Capital Management is liable as a direct participant in the wrongs
complained of herein. Alliance Capital Management, because of its position of authority and
control over the AllianceBernstein Reg‘istrants was able to and did: (1) control the content of the
Prospectuses; and (2) control the operations of ‘the A!IiancéBemstein Funds. ‘ |

91. Alliance Capital Mallagelhent had a duty to i) disseminate accurate and trﬁthful
information with fespect to the AllianceBemstein Fuﬁds; and (2) to truthfully and uniformly act
in accordance with its stated policies and fiduciary responsibilities to plaintiff and members of

- the Class. Alliance Capvital Managémem participated in the wrongdoirfg complained of herein m '
order to prévent plaintiff and ;Jtller members of the Class from knowing of Alliance Capital
Management’s breaches of fiduciary duties inqlud'mg: (1) increasing its profitability at plaintiff’s -
other membérs of the Class’ expehse by allowing Canary and the John Doe Defendémts to‘

secretly time and late trade the AllianceBernstein Funds shares; and (2) placing its interests
’ % X . .

)
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aﬁead of the interests of plaintiff and ofher members of the Class.

92.  Asaresult of Alliance Capital Management’s multiple breaches of its fiduciary
duties. owed plaintiff and other members of the Class, plaintiff and other Class members were
damaged. |

93.  Plaintiff and other Class members are entitled to rescind their investment
advisory contracts with Allianéé CapitallMa‘nagement and recover all fees paid in connection

" with their enrollment pursua.nt to such agreements.
SIXTH CLAIM

Against Canary Defendants and Doe Defendants
1-100 for Disgorgement and Injunctive Relief

94, The Can’aﬁv Defendants and Doe Défendants 1-100 each proﬁteci at plaintiff’s
expense throﬁgh the illicit trades described above. |
9s. Theée profits are ill-gotten gairis which rightfully belong to plaintiff and the class,
“and should be disgorged, and were obtained through knov?iﬁg violation of SEC nﬂes and
prohibitions contained in the Prospectuses. The gains receivevd by fne Canary Defendants and
‘Doe Defendants were taken dii’ectly, dollar-for-dollar, from plaintiff and other Class members;v
the Canary Defendants and Doe Defendants benefitted from the receipt of these ménies; and
under principles of equity and good coﬁscien_ce, the Canary Defendants and Doe Defendants
should not be permitted to retain such monies.
96.  The Canary Defendants and the Doe Defendants should be enjoined from

engaging in or othérwise further conducting late trades or timing of the Alliance Group Funds.
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- SEVENTH CLAIM

Against the Fund Defendants for Violations of Section 36 of
The Investment Company Act of 1940 [15 U.S.C. § 80a-35]

97. . Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set fbxih herein.

98.  This claim for relief is broﬁght pursu;mt to Section 36 of the Investment Company
Act of 1940 agéinst the Fund Defendants. |

99. Under Section 36 of the Investment Company Act, the Fund Defendants shall be
deemed to owé a ﬁdﬁciary duty to plaintiff and other Class members with reépect to the receipt
of fees and compeﬁsatioﬁ that the Fund Defendants receive for services of a material nature,

100.  Here, the Fund Defendants have devised and imI‘)lementecvl a scheme to qbtain
substantial compensation thréughout the Class Period ‘and in violation of their fiduciary duties to
their customers, Le., plaintiff and Class ‘members.

101.  The Fund Defendants engaged in such scheme to only benefit themselves byb
adopting a policy where timing was permitted in the fmuds which caused harm to the

unéuspécting long-term investors.

102.  TheF und Defendants have breached the fiduciary duties they owed to plaintiff
and other Class members by, ‘among other things, devising this plan and scheme solely fo,r their
own benefit and by failing to reveal to plaintiff and the Class members material facts which
would allow them to make informed decisions about the true value and performance of the

AllianceBernstein Funds.
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103. Plainﬁff .and other class members ﬁave been injured as a result of the Advisers and
U‘ndemriters’ breach. of ﬁduciary dufy and violation of Section 36 of the Investmém Company
Act of 1940. |

- PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief and judément, as follows:

(@) Detemﬁniﬁg that this action is a proper ciass action and appdinting plaintiff as Lead
. Plaintiff and her counsel as Lead Counsel for the Class and certifying her as a class
representative under Rule 23 of the Federal Rﬁles of Civil Procedure;

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plaintiff and other Class members
against all defendants, jointly and‘severally, for all damages sustained as a result of defendants’
V\ffongdoing, in an anﬁouﬁ.t to be proveh at trial, including interest thereon;

(c) awarding plaintiff and other members of the Class rescission of their contracts with
Alliance Capital Management, including recovery of all fees which would otherwise apply, and
recovery of all fees paid to Alliaﬁcé Capital Managerﬁént pursuant to such agrééments;

(d) causing the Fund Defendants to account for wrongfully gotten gains, profits and
compensatioﬁ and to make restitution of same and disgorge them;

(e) Awarding plaintiff and the Class reasonable costs and expenses incurred in this action,

including counsel fees and expert fees; and |

(f) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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- JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. -

Dated: November 12, 2003  COHEN, MILSTEIN, HAUSFELD & TOLL, P.L.L.C.

Cothociie Tou 0 0

Catherine A. Torell (CT-0905)
150 East 52nd Street, 30th Floor
New York, NY 10022
Telephone: (212) 838-7797
Facsimile: (212) 838-7745

Herbert E. Milstein
Daniel S. Sommers
Adam T. Savett
. COHEN, MILSTEIN, HAUSFELD & TOLL, P.LL.C.

1100 New York Avenue, N.'W, '
West Tower, Suite 500
Washington, DC 20005
Telephone: (202) 408-4600
Facsimile: (202) 408-4699

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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 CERTIFICATION OF PLAINTIEF
PURSUANT TQ FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS

[, Lori Weinnib, {(Plaintifl’) declare, as to the slaius ssverted under the fedaral

securities laws, that:

1. Ihave reviewsed the class action complaint saserting securities ¢laims

against Alliance Capital Management and other refated entities and wish to join 2s 2

plaintiff.

2. . Plaintiff did not purchase the security that is the subject of this sction at
the direction of plaintifi°s counsel or in arder to participate i this privals action.

3 PlaintifT is willing to serve as a represcmative party on bebalf of the class,

 including providing testimony at deposition and trial, if necessary.

-4 My transzctions in AllianceBemstein Americas Government Income Trust

Class A and B (ANAGX, ANABX) during the Class Period were as follows:

Date Transaction Ne, of Shares Price Per Share
SEE ATTACHED ‘ '

3. During the three yoars prior to the date of this Certificate, Plaintiff has not

sought 10 serve or served a5 & ropresentative party for a class jo the following actions

- under the federal secunties laws uxcept as follows:

6.

Tanug Mutnal Funds litigation
-Strong Mutual Funds litigation
Plaintiff will not accopt any payment for serving 4s a representative party on.

behalf of the class beyond plaintiffs pro rata share of any recovery, except such

reasonable costs and expenses (including lost wages) dircetly relating 1o the

represctation of the class a3 ordered or approved by the court,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the forepning is true and carrect,

Executed this 02‘? day or__fol_ ?"_,zcoa. 4/ .
R e LS ]

Lori Weinrib
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FWR

ACCT: 804-3712Z0 LORI WEINRIB

MERRILL LYNCH

 FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS

SECURITY DETAIL

8453486335 P. UL/

11:29 20/13/03 PG 1

COB 10/11/03
FC:5082

DESC: ALLIANCE BERNSTN AMERICA SYM: ANABYX QRQ: SBC NO: 973Mp
GOVT INCOME TRUST CL B . CURR POS: 18 MKT VAL: 133.74
.7 CURR PX: 7.4300 STRATEGY: TECH:
DATE TYPE SOL QTY PRICE NET AMOUNT . COMMENT :
08/21/03 JE 1 .0000 0 )
11/21/02 JE 1 .0000 a
02/21/02 JE 1 .0000 .0
06/21/01 JE 3 ., Qa0o 0
08/21/00 JE 1 .0000 0
01/04/00 AXDB 13 7.2600 94
101/03/00 JE 4,044C L0000 : 0
12/22/99 AIDB 36 " 7.3100 264
11/23/99 AIDB 35 7.3500 261
11/23/99 JE 1 .a0Q0 )
© 10/22/59 RIDB 36 ©7.1200 © 253
09/22/99 AIDB is 7.3100 257
09/22/9% JE 1 .0a00 -0
08/24/99 AIDR as 7.1800 . 254
07/22/59 AIDB 39 7.3300 286
06/22/99 AIDB 3a 7.4400 284
05/24/99 AIDB 37 7.5400 281
05/24/99 JE 1 .0000 _ 0
-04/22/59 AIDB is 7.8400 278
03/23/29 RIDB g 7.5200 275
03/23/99 JE 1 L0000 6
D2/23/99 AIDB a6 7.5000 273
01/22/99 AIDB 24 7.4100 175
01/0S/39 AIDB 12 7.6100 95
12/23/98 AIDB 36 7.6100 267
11/25/98 AIDB 34 7.5900 265
10/22/98 AIDB 36 7.4600 262
''09/22/98 AIDB 37 7.0400 259
0B/24/98 AIDB 34 7.4500 257
07/22/98 AIDB 32 7.9700 254
06/23/98 ARIDB 32 7.9000 252
045/22/98 AIDB 31 7.9700 250
'FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY - ACCOUNT STATEMENT IS OFFICIAL RECORD
THIS INFO MUST NOT BE USED IN PLACE OF THE MERRILL LYNCH TAX REPORTING
STATEMENT FOR TAX INFORMATION,
<MORE>
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OCT-13-20@3 12:28

- MERRILL LYNCH

S40348b952 F.goryr
[ [
’ . , 11:29 10/13/03 PG 2
FWR FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS COB 10/11/03
- SECURITY DETAIL FC:5082
ACCT: 804-37120 LORI WEINRIB
DESC: ALLIANCE EERNSTN AMERICA SYM: ANABX QRQ: SEC NO: g7%M0
GOVT INCOME TRUST CL B CURR POS: 18 MKT VAL: 133.74
_ ' CURR PX: 7.4300 STRATEGY: TECH:
DATE = TYPE SOL  QTY - PRICE NET AMOUNT COMMENT :
04/22/98 AIDB 31 8.0800 247
03/24/98 AIDB 30 8.1000 245
02/24/98 AIDB 30 8.0900 243
01/22/%8 AIDB 20 8.1000 155
g1/06/98 AIDB 0 8.0800 85
12/23/%7 AIDB 30 7.9800 " 238
11/24/27 AXDB 30 7.9100 236
10/23/97 AIDB 28 8.3200 234
09/23/97 AIDRB 28 8.3500 232
£08/22/97 AIDB ‘28 §.2800 230
07/21/97 AIDR 28 8.2400 . 228
06/24/97 AIDE 27 8.1800 226
05/22/97 AIDB 28 8.0000 223
‘04/22/97 AIDRB 29 7.7900 221
03/24/97 AIDB 28 7.8200 218
02/24/97 AIDB 26 B8.1600 217
01/22/87 RIDB 18 7.8900 139
01/06/97 AIDB 10 7.9100 76
12/27/96 BAIDB 27 7.85300 213
11/22/96 AIDB 27 7.9500 211
10/22/96 AIDB 27 7.6500 209
09/24/96 AIDB 28 7.4100 207
08/22/96 ALDB 28 7.3700 208
07/23/96 AIDB 28 7.2300 203
06/24/96 BIDE 28 7.1400 201
05/22/96 AIDB 27 7.4400 1989
04/23/96 RIDB 27 7.3200 197
03/22/96 AIDB 28 7.0200 195
02/22/96 AIDB 26 7.4100 193
01/23/96 AIDB 16 7.5200 123
01/04/96 AIDB g 7.2500 67
12/22/55 AIDB 27 7.1400 189
FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY - ACCOUNT STATEMENT IS OFFICIAL RECORD
TEIS INFO MUST NOT BE USED IN PLACE OF THE MERRILL LYNCH TAX REPORTING
STATEMENT FOR TAX INFORMATION.
<MORE>
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OCT 13 2003 12:37

-

0CT-13-2803 12:28 . MERRILL LYNCH B453400932
T ' . ' 11:29 10/13/03 PG 3
FWR : FINANCTAL CONSULTANTS , COB 10/12/03
‘ . SECURITY DETAIL FC:5082
ACCT: 804-37120 LORI WEINRIB ~ '
DESC: ALLIANCE BERNSTN AMERICA . SYM: ANABX ORQ: SEC NO: 979M0
GOVT INCOME TRUST CL B © CURR FPOS: 18 MKT VAL: 133.74
CURR PX: * 7.4300 STRATEGY: TECH:
DATE TYPE §OL- QTY  PRICE NET AMOUNT : COMMENT
11/22/95 AIDR , 29 £.4200 187
©10/24/95 RIDB - 27 6.7600 184 .
© 08/25/35 RIDB 26 7.0200 183
. 06/08/95 AIDB . 17 6.9800 123
. 05/11/95 TFD 2,423 .0000 0
05/11/95 TFD 2,423C - .o0o00 )
12/31/93 BOT 2,423 10.3200 25,010
R MmN N T IR S S S S I e S O N N L I s N T T TSN I eSS e DR e e
TOTAL BUYS : 2,423 TOTAL DEBITS 6,467
TOTAL SELLS TOTAL CREDITS 4,062
'POR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY - ACCOUNT STATEMENT IS OFFICIAL RECORD
THIS INFO MUST NOT BE USED IN PLACE OF THE MERRILL LYNCH TAX REPORTING
STATEMENT FOR TAX INFORMATION.
S ‘ ' <END>.
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MERKILL LYNGH . O0HT0 SO rooor o

: T 11:27 10/13/03 PG 1
FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS CoB 10/10/03

FHR’
: < o SECURITY DETAIL . FC:;5082
ACCT: 804-37120 LORI WEINRIB ‘ '
DESC: ALLIANCE BERNSTN AMERICA - SYM: ANAGX QRQ: SEC NO: 979L8S
GOVT INCOME TRUST CL A . CURR POS: 5,801 MKT VAL: 43,10%.43
) . CURR BX: 7.4300 STRATEGY: TECH:
DATE ° TYPE SOL QTY PRICE NET AMOUNT COMMENT

05/22/032 AIDB - ©. 37 7.4900 . 281 '

08/21/03 AIDB 3a 7.2800 280

08/21/03 JE 1 ..0000 . )

07/21/03 AIDB - 37 7.4600 278

‘06/23/03 AIDB - 35 7.7700 276

05/21/03 AIDRB a5 7,6800 274

05/21/03 JE . 1 .0000 0

04/21/03 AIDR 37 7.2600 272

04/21/03 JE 1 .000¢ 0

03/21/03 AIDB 38 7.0300 - 270

02/21/03 AIDB 38 6.9900 269

02/21/03 JRB 1 .0000 0

01/21/02 AIDB 24 6.9700 172

41/21/03 JB - 1 L0000 0

01/02/03 AIDR 13 7.0500 94

12/23/02 AIDB 37 7.0500 265

12/23/02 JE 1 .0008 )}
©11/21/02 AIDR 38 6.9000 263

10/21/02 AIDB 3s 6.7400 261

10/21/02 JE 1 .0000 0

09/23/02 AIDB 37 © §.8400 259

09/23/02 JE i .00a0 0

08/21/02 AIDB 37 6.8400 257

07/22/02 AIDB 37. §.7400 256

07/22/02 JB 1 .0000 (}

06/21/02 AIDB 37 §.7200 254

06/21/02 JE 1. _..0000 0

05/21/02 AIDB 46 - 6.8000 314

04/22/02 AIDB 44 6.9500 311

04/22/02 JE 1 L0000 - 0

03/21/02 AIDB a4 6.8700 308

03/21/02 JE 1 ,0000 0

FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY - ACCOUNT STATEMENT IS OFFICIAL RECORD
THIS INFQ MUST NOT BE USED IN PLACE OF THE MERRILL LYNCH TAX REPORTING
STATEMENT FOR TAX INFORMATION.
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COCT~13-24W8s 12129 . MERRILL LYNLH : OUDOHODTID.  r.worur

»

. ' © 1x:27 10/13/03 PG 2

FWR = . FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS : COB 10/10/03
SECURITY DETAIL : - FC:5082
ACCT: 804-37120 LORI WEINRIB . _
DESC: ALLIANCE BERNSTN AMERICA SYM: ANAGK ‘ QRO SEC NO: 975L®
GOVT INCOME TRUST CL A CURR PBOS: 5,801 MKT VAL: C . 43,101.42
. CURR EX: 7.4300 STRATEGY: TECH:
DATE TYPE SOL QTY PRICE  NET AMOUNT COMMENT
02/21/02 AIDB 43 7.1300 31086
01/22/02 AIDB 27 7.1100 - 196
01/22/02 JE 1 .o0o00aQ 0
01/02/02 AIDB ‘ 15 6.9900 107
12/21/02 AIDB a2 7.0000 300
12/21/01 JE 1 < .0000 .0
11/21/01 AIDB 42 7.0500 298
10/22/01 AIDB 38 7.6100 . 285
10/22/01 JE 1 .0000 e
. 68/21/01 ATIDB 3% . 7.3400 293
09/21/01 JE 1 .00na 0
08/21/01 AIDB ag 7.6300 251
07/26/01 AIDB - 38 7.5300 288
07/26/01 JE 1 .0600 0
06/21/01 AIDR 36 7.8300 286
05/21/01 AIDB as 7.7000 284
65/21/01 JE ' 1 .0000 . 0
04/23/01 AIDB 38 7.2800 282
04/23/01 JE 1 ©.0000 0
03/21/01 AIDB 36 7.6300 279
02/21/01 AIDB 39 © 7.6900 300
61/22/01 AIDB 25 7.7100 192
01/02/01 ATDB 13 7.6900 ‘ 105
g1/0z2/01 JB 1 . 0000 © D
'12/21/00 AIDB 38 7.7200 295
11/22/00 AIDB 39 7.4600 292
11/22/00 JE . .1 .0000 ‘ 0
10/23/00 AIDB , 38 7.4700 280
10/23/00 JE 1 .06000 d
09/21/00 AIDR . 38 7.4800 - 2B7
.08/21/00 AIDB 37 7.5900 - 285
08/21/00 JE 1 .0000 0

FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY - ACCOUNT STATEMENT IS OFFICIAL RECORD
THIS INFO MUST NQT BE USED IN PLACE OF THE MERRILL LYNCH TAX REPORTING
STATEMENT FOR TAX INFORMATION.

<MORE>

We are providing the above information
as you requested. However, we consider
your monthly statements to be the offictal
-document of ell transactions.

OCT 13 2083 12:37 , 8453466935 ' PAGE. 86
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OCT-13-2803 12:29 MERRILL LYNCH
L4
r

.FWR . FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS

8453450932 r.grrye

11:27 10/13/03 BG 3
COB 10/10/03

SECURITY DETAIL FC:5082
ACCT: B04-37120 LORI WRINRIB , '
DESC: ALLIANCE BERNSTN AMERICA SYM: ANAGX ORQ: SEC NO: 979L9
GOVT INCOME TRUST CL A ~ - CURR POS: 5,801 MKT VAL: 43,101.43
‘ * CURR PX: 7.4300 STRATEGY: TECH:
DATE TYPE SOL QTY ERICE NET AMOUNT - COMMENT
07/21/00 AIDB ig 7.5500 299
'06/21/00 AIDB 40 7.3800 296
06/21/00 JB 1 .0000 0
05/26/00 AIDB 41 7.120¢ o293
. 04/25/00 AIDE 28 " 7.5700 251
03/22/00 AIDB 38 7.5800 . 288
02/23/00 AIDB 38 7.4300 285
02/23/00 JE 1 .0000 -0
01/24/00 AIDR 25 7.2200 183
" 01/03/00 JE 4,055 .0000 0
R T S N N S S N S S S s T I T S T NG s T I N A T S S T e T AN S S ST ST SN Rae T SO NsESEEI e
TOTAL BUYS TOTAL DEBITS
TOTAL SELLS =  TOTAL CREDITS - 5,801

FOR INFORMATION PUR?OSES ONLY - ACCOUNT STATEMENT IS

OFFICIAL RECORD

THIS INFQ MUST NOT BE USED IN PLACE OF THE MERRILL LYNCH TAX REPORTING

STATEMENT FCOR TAX INFORMATION.
. ) <END>

We are providing the above information
a3 you reque.?ted. Hawevey, we cml_;;'der:
x@ur4nonduysumunuyu:avbﬂlhféﬁﬂfﬁﬂ
docwment of all eransactions.

OCT 13 2883 12:37

8453486335

»

>

TOTAL P.87
PRGE. @7




